
 

Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2020                                                            1 
 

                   CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
                  R. Carlisle Roddey Government Complex  
    1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Chester, SC  
                                                Monday, July 6th, 2020 at 6:00 PM 
                                               Chairman Shane Stuart Presiding   
 
                   AGENDA  
                               

1.    Call to Order 

2.    Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation  

3.    Approval of Minutes 

a.  June 11th, 2020 Special Called & Budget Workshop Council Minutes  

b.  June 15th,2020 Council Minutes 

c.  June 25th, 2020 Special Called Council Minutes  

4.    Citizen Comments 

5.    Public Hearing 

a.  3rd  Reading 2020-17 An Ordinance To Amend An Agreement For The Development Of A Joint 

Industrial And Business Park Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park To Include A 

Portion Of Those Certain Pieces, Parcels, Or Tracts Of Land, With All Improvements Thereon, 

Situate Lying Or Being In The County Of Chester, State Of South Carolina, Bearing Tax Map Number: 

165-00-00-002 And Other Real Property. 

 

6.    Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations  

a. 3rd Reading 2020-17 An Ordinance To Amend An Agreement For The Development Of A Joint 
Industrial And Business Park Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park To Include A 
Portion Of Those Certain Pieces, Parcels, Or Tracts Of Land, With All Improvements Thereon, 
Situate Lying Or Being In The County Of Chester, State Of South Carolina, Bearing Tax Map Number: 
165-00-00-002 And Other Real Property. 
 
b. 2ndReading of 2020-19 An Ordinance to Amend Chester County Code Chapter 2, Administration, 
Section 761st seq., Fort Lawn Fire Protection District and Lewis Fire Protection District. 
 
c. Resolution 2020-15 Inducement Resolution for Project 2026 

 
        d. 2nd Reading 2020-20 An Ordinance Authorizing the Execution And Delivery Of A Fee In Lieu Of Ad   

        Valorem Taxes Agreement By And Between Chester County And Project 2026; The Inclusion Of The  

        Project Site (Located In Chester County) In A Multi-County Industrial Park; The Execution And  

        Delivery Of Other Documents As May Be Necessary To Effect This Ordinance’s Intent; And Other  

        Related Matters.  

  

  e. 2nd Reading 2020-21 An Ordinance to Create the Chester County Radio Users Advisory Committee And  

                Adopt Its Enabling Act. 

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 4

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 7

klee
Typewriter
 Pg. 12

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 13

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 15

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 17

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 21

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 47



 

Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2020                                                            2 
 

f. 1st Reading 2020-22 An Ordinance to Authorize the County Of Chester, By Chester County Council, To Sell  
  The Real Estate Described On Attached Exhibit “A” Which Is Incorporated Herein By Reference To Mr. F.G. 
  Delleney, Jr. Upon Such Terms and Conditions as Described In The Request For Bid.  
 

7.    Old Business  

 a. To Receive a Status Update Regarding the 90-Day EMS Plus-Up. -John Faulkner 

  b. Update on the Rolling Stock Bond- Bond Attorney Michael Kozlarek 

 c.  Update on Fort Lawn Heart and Soul- Robin Currence  

 d.  Update on Great Falls Projects- Councilman Mike Vaughn 

e.  Budget Request for Small Business Development Retention and Expansion Program. Chairman Stuart 

            f.  To Review and Consider A Proposal for the Gateway IPRB. - Interim Economic Developer Jeff Burgess 

 g.  Discussion Regarding Boards & Commission Appointment Procedures - Chairman Stuart 

8.    New Business  

 a.  Discussion Regarding County Bonding for New Animal Shelter- Councilman Oliphant 

b. 1st Reading of CCMA20-02:   Patton Development SC, LLC Request 2.95 acres of Tax Map # 079-01-17-013-
000 (survey provided) located on JA Cochran By-Pass be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to GC (General 
Commercial) Planning Commission Voted 6 - 0 to Approve.  
 
c. 1st Reading of CCMA20-06:  Gary Howell, with Howell Homes of the Carolinas, Request Tax Map # 

123-00-00-090- 000 located on Hamilton Rd, Chester, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to R1 (Rural One)  

Planning Commission Voted 4-1 to Deny.  

 

 d. 1st Reading CCMA20-03:  Luck Stone Corporation Request Tax Map # 089-00-00-001-000 located  
              at 1421 Collie Lane, Chester, SC 29706 be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID3 (General Industrial) and ID1 
              (Restricted Industrial) Planning Commission Voted 2-4 to Deny. 
 
 e. 1st Reading CCMA20-05:  Luck Stone Corporation Request Tax Map # 089-00-00-002-000 located  
              at 1295 Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID3 (General Industrial) and ID1  
              (Restricted Industrial) Planning Commission Voted 2-4 to Deny.  
 
 f. 1st Reading CCMA20-04:  Luck Stone Corporation Request Tax Map # 089-00-00-025-000 located  
              on Lancaster Hwy, Chester, SC 29706 be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to ID3 (General Industrial) Planning  
              Commission Voted 4-2 to Deny. 

 g. Request to Apply for a Regional Catastrophic Preparedness Grant for Region 4 DHS/FEMA- Sheriff Dorsey   

  h. Richburg Fire EMS Update- T. Melton 

 i.  Approval of Rodman Master Plan- Councilman Jordan 

 j.  Discuss Planning & Zoning Media Packets to County Website- Councilman Oliphant 

 k.  Social Media County Employees and County Appointee’s- Councilman Oliphant 

 

 

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 52

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 54

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 55

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 56

klee
Typewriter
 Pg. 57

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 60

klee
Typewriter
 Pg. 64

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 70

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 90

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 110

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 114

klee
Typewriter
 Pg. 115



 

Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2020                                                            3 
 

9.    Boards and Commissions 

 a. Appointment to Parks and Recreation Commission-Councilman Wilson 

 b. Appointments to Fort Lawn Fire Protection Commission. County Council 

10.   Executive Session  

 a. Personnel Issue Regarding the Fort Lawn Fire Protection District-Councilman Oliphant  

 b. Personnel Issue Regarding the Rural Fire Board Commission-Councilman Oliphant 

11.   Council Actions Following Executive Session 

 a. Action Taken Regarding Personnel Issue with the Fort Lawn Fire Protection District. 

 b. Action Taken Regarding Personnel Issue with the Rural Fire Board Commission. 
 
12.   Council Comments 

13.   Adjourn              

 Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, 
the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted 
on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 
 

    Guidelines for Addressing Council 

 Citizens Comments: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number 
• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes 
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to speak on 

behalf of the group 
 
Public Hearings: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number 
• Each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation 
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to speak on 

behalf of the group 
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address 
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed 
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council 
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed 

 

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity 
• Stray from the subject 
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council 

 

 

       
 

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 118

klee
Typewriter
Pg. 119



           CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

                    R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                                 1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 

                                       June 11th, 2020 at 4:00 PM  
 

                     Special Called Meeting and Budget Workshop  

     MINUTES  

Present: Chairman Shane Stuart, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Council Member Brad Jordan, Council 
Member Alex Oliphant, Council Member Pete Wilson, Councilman Vaughn, Clerk to Council Karen Lee, 
Treasurer Tommy Darby and Finance Director Wes Carter. Council Member Mary Guy came in after the 
vote to go to executive session.  

1.    Call to Order-Chairman Stuart called the meeting order.  

2.    Executive Session-Councilman Jordan motioned to go to Executive Session, second by Vice  
        Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
 a. Discuss Economic Development Project 2024. 

 b. Discuss Economic Development Project 2026. 

3.    Action Taken after Executive Session-Councilwoman Guy motioned to go back to Regular Session,  
       second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
 a. Action Taken Regarding Economic Development Project 2024. Taken as information only.  

 b. Action Taken Regarding Economic Development Project 2026. Taken as information only.  

4.   New Business 

 a. Discuss Refrigeration Problems in the Detention Center.  
     Sheriff Dorsey stated the compressor in the freezer at the detention center was old and has 

    been worked on a lot. The HVAC technician had told them it stop was a matter of time  
    when they would completely stop working. They had two quotes to purchase a new one, first 
    quote was $ 9400 and the second $9700 dollars to change over with new compressor lines  
    inside and out, evaporators on top of the units. Treasurer Darby stated a salary line item to    
    equipment line item in the Sheriff’s budget could be used to purchase through a vacancy  
    where they had a budget transfer and no council action would be required.  

 
5.    Budget Discussion-Chairman Stuart 

           a. Budget Ordinance Items 

   1.  Workers Comp and Property Liability 
        Treasurer Darby stated the annual contribution for the periods of July 1, 2020 through July  

                     1, 2021 was $629,529 dollars for property and liability insurance renewal, workers  
                     compensation renewal was $430,215 dollars for the same period. Together they have  
                     increased by $230,000 dollars from the prior year and the county is ranked twenty-four out  
                     of forty-six counties. The increase was due to excess property insurers having significant  
                     losses the past year and increases in their property premiums along with COVID-19 crisis  
                     impacting insurance and financial markets.  



 
     2.  General Fund Revenue 
         Treasurer Darby gave a brief history of past revenues and what it looks like now for the   

                       next budget cycle. Fiscal year 2020 anticipated revenue at $ 22,520,882 and does anticipate 
the sale of Southeastern Petroleum if the $600,000 is taking out the budget would be short 
by that amount.  Next fiscal year anticipating $22,333,214 dollars and does have an 
appropriation of fund balance around $579,000 dollars.  

 
     3.  Online Convenience Fees 
          Treasurer Darby stated the fee for online payments had been waived, the current total  
                                              cost from March to June was $22,857 dollars. The actual online payments were up 244   
                                              percent from the prior year, people staying at home paying their taxes and not coming out  

                                during the coronavirus. The state of emergency for this will run out the middle of July,   
                                typically, the taxpayers pay around $28,000 dollars in fees from using the online service. 
                                He stated he needed to add $4000 dollars to add back to his budget  
 

     4.  Litter Enforcement/Nuisance & Abatement Request. 
           Treasurer Darby stated TJ Martin had requested $720 added to his professional service  

         account to order to obtain the Sheriff’s office to for civil process services to deliver  
         certified letters to owners who do not pick them up.  
 

                  5.  List of Services the County provides to other Municipalities.  
          Council discussed the lease agreement with Great Falls which included lawncare and  
                        utilities services that came to the amount of $28,548. 41 dollars.  It was asked what other  
                        municipalities were provided services. The County collects city taxes for Great Falls, Fort  
                        Lawn and the City of Chester, along with building permits for Great Falls, Fort Lawn.   
 
                  6.  Other Carry Over Items 

         Chairman Stuart stated $ 4051.42 was left over from a vehicle accident, the vehicle was  
         replaced, he asked Council if the left-over funds could be reallocated for Census to be  
          finished off for the rest of the month of July. Councilwoman Guy motioned to reallocate  
         $4051.42 funds to Census to the end of July, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 6-0  
          to approve.        
 
          EMS Director Britt Lineberger stated call volumes were slightly down from last year but  
          within the past few weeks the call volumes have went up due to the coronavirus.  
          An EMS 6 truck was placed in West Chester Fire Department a few months ago but since it   
         the weather has changed and its hotter they can no longer use it as sleeping arrangements 

since was basically a garage. Councilman Wilson asked if the building at Baton Rouge Park 
could be used by EMS, Operation Manager Tyanne Perry stated the building was not an 
option and was in bad shape.  Councilman Wilson asked if the concession stand could be 
used, Public Works Director Robert Hall stated he could add an air conditioner window unit 
at the cost of around $1500 dollars that would include hooking it up. Councilman Wilson 
motioned to fund the addition of cool space at the concession stand at Baton Rouge Park 
for the use of EMS using the funds of $10,000 set aside for supplies to be reallocated for 
this use up to $2000, second by Councilman Oliphant. Vote 6-0 to approve.  Councilman 
Jordan stated the shoreline that is currently at West Chester would be moved across the 
street to the concession stand, Mr. Lineberger stated that was correct.  

 
           
 
 
 



            b. Capital  
   

                1. Rolling Stock 
       Chairman Stuart went over items on the list departments had requested which came to  
                    around twelve million dollars.  Treasurer Darby stated there was little over a 1.5 million in  
                    rolling stock. Council asked Chairman Stuart to send them the list he was using when this   
                    would be on the agenda. Treasurer Darby stated he thought the deadline was July 15th to  
                    have back to the bond attorney Michael Kozlarek.  
       
                2. Grant related to the Sheriff’s Office 

Sheriff Max Dorsey stated he was proud to receive the COPS grant of one million dollars with 
no match from the County that saved the $250,000; this will enable him to hire six deputies. 
Currently there are four frozen slots on his org chart but with the grant he can fill them for 
the next three years. The other two positions he hoped Council would fund them as well. He 
stated this was for the salaries only and not cars, radios, etc., he recognized it would be 
Council’s decision to make to equip the cars. Vehicles needed to be self-sustainable to print 
out reports in the car, he needs money to purchase seven new vehicles. Councilman Oliphant 
motioned to accept the grant, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote was 6-0 to approve. Vice 
Chairman Branham motioned to take $490,000 from the general fund to purchase vehicles 
for the sheriff’s office, second by Councilman Vaughn.  
 
Councilman Oliphant stated the $490,000 was to pay back the rolling stock, Joe’s motion was 
not to pay the rolling stock back but to use the money for what it was originally spent on new 
cars.  Treasurer Darby stated there was a resolution in place where the County would pay 
itself back the $490,000 dollars for the purchase of ten vehicles purchased in March of this 
year. He stated the resolution could be strike since the cars have already been purchased 
from the fund balance this would free up $490,000 from the rolling stock fund. 
Councilman Vaughn withdrew his second, Vice Chairman Branham withdrew his motion. Vice 
Chairman Branham motioned to repeal the resolution to repay the County and take $490,000 
from the rolling stock fund, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

   
           c. Landfill  
       
    1.  Tonnage Cost for Debris 

                      Treasurer Darby stated the information provide to him by Sharon Bickett, Recycling 
                      Coordinator the cost for the cleanup in Great Falls from the tornado damage put in the 
                      landfill came to $2689. 92. Councilman Oliphant motioned to waive the fee, second by 
                      Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 
 6.     Adjourn-Councilman Jordan motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy.  Vote 6-0 to 
                               adjourn.  
 
         Time: 7:10 PM  

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 

 
 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 15th, 2020                                                              1 
 

     CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
                                 R. Carlisle Roddey Government Complex  
    1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Chester, SC  
                                               Monday, June 15th, 2020 at 6:00 PM  
  
      
Present: Chairman Shane Stuart, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Pete Wilson, Councilman Alex Oliphant, 
Councilman Brad Jordan, Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, County Attorney Joanie Winters 
and Clerk to Council Karen Lee. 
                       

1.      Call to Order-Chairman Stuart called the meeting to order, on the agenda he removed items 7.a., 8.a. and 7b.  
          to the July 6th meeting.  
 
2.      Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation- Pledge was recited in unison; Councilwoman Guy gave  
          the invocation.  

3.      Approval of June 1st, 2020 Minutes. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman  
         Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
4.      Citizen Comments 
 

Diane Holcombe, 1687 Orrs Station Road, Chester stated she felt like everything was taking precedents 
over having a new animal shelter built. She knew it was taken off of the capital project sales tax because 
they did not have enough information, but she was willing to help with anything they needed to get the 
shelter built.  
 
Paula Love, 1681 Pinckney Road, Chester stated she use to be volunteer at the animal shelter but now 
works there, they have been promised for years a new shelter would be built and stated animals deserve 
better.  
 
Pete Stone, 761 Lancaster Hwy, Chester thanked Council for what they do, and enjoyed the community 
gathering Sheriff Dorsey and Mayor Stringfellow (City of Chester) put together. He recognized Ariane 
McCree’s family. Mr. Stone stated he believed we can have a better world by working together to revise 
the system. 
 
Christina King, 853 Old Mill Road, Richburg stated she coaches both soccer and softball at Rodman, it 
breaks her heart that Rodman and Great Falls parks are not treated in comparison to Chester. The priority 
should be the children of Chester County and not the location of the fields.  
 
Melba Carter, 872 Yarborough Road, Chester stated veterans are being told by the driver who takes them 
to appointments they could not take them. She stated they are failing to do their job and taxpayers are 
paying this person for not doing the job.  Chester County needs to put together a citizen’s review board for 
everyone to work together. 
 
Tabatha Strothers, 2449 N. Dawson Drive, Chester stated she was angry because she did not see anything 
on the agenda about Ariane McCree and asked what Councils plans were to bring justice. She also agreed 
the County needs a citizen review board.  
 
 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 15th, 2020                                                              2 
 

Doris Macomson, 718 Jones Circle, Catawba stated she felt like everything was going backwards with the 
animal shelter and wondered why the shelter never receives anything. They have been promised a new 
one but has disappeared again. 
 
Alan Clack, 1671 Great Falls Hwy, Blackstock asked Council if they would re-open the parks and fields, 
Governor McMaster’s in May stated youth sports could return.  

  
5.      Public Hearing- Chairman Stuart opened the Public Hearing.  

a. 3rd Reading of  Ordinance 2019-5   To Levy And Impose A One Percent Sales And Use Tax, Subject To A 
Referendum In Chester County Pursuant To The CPST Act, South Carolina Code Annotated Section 4-10-
300, Et Seq.; To Define The Specific Purposes And Designate The Projects For Which The Proceeds Of The 
Tax May Be Used; To Provide The Maximum Time For The Imposition And Collection Of The Tax; To 
Provide For A County-Wide Referendum And To Prescribe The Contents Of The Ballot Question In The 
Referendum; To Provide Conditions Precedent To The Imposition Of The Tax And Conditions Or 
Restrictions On The Use Of The Tax Revenue; To Establish The Priority In Which The Net Proceeds Of The 
Tax Are To Be Expended For The Purposes And Projects Stated; To Provide For The Conduct Of The 
Referendum By The Chester County Board Of Voter Registration And Elections; To Provide For The 
Payment Of The Tax; To Provide For The Issuance Of Bonds, In One Or More Series, Tax-Exempt Or 
Taxable, In An Amount Not To Exceed The Aggregate Of $17,250,000; Authorizing The County Supervisor 
To Prescribe The Form And Details Of The Bonds; Providing For The Payment Of The Bonds And Pledge Of 
Revenues Related To The Bonds; Providing Otherwise For The Disposition Of The Proceeds Of The Bonds; 
Providing For Borrowing In Anticipation Of The Issuance Of The Bonds; Providing For The Disposition Of 
Property Related To The Bonds; And Other Related Matters.  No one signed up to speak. 
 
b.   3rd Reading of Ordinance 2020-16 Chester County Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget to Establish 
Operating And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South 
Carolina For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2020; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester 
County For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2020; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And 
Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money In 
Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing 
Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester 
County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government. No one signed 
up to speak. Chairman Stuart closed the Public Hearing. 

6.    Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

      a.  3rd Reading of Ordinance 2019-5  To Levy And Impose A One Percent Sales And Use Tax, Subject To A 
Referendum In Chester County Pursuant To The CPST Act, South Carolina Code Annotated Section 4-10-
300, Et Seq.; To Define The Specific Purposes And Designate The Projects For Which The Proceeds Of The 
Tax May Be Used; To Provide The Maximum Time For The Imposition And Collection Of The Tax; To Provide 
For A County-Wide Referendum And To Prescribe The Contents Of The Ballot Question In The Referendum; 
To Provide Conditions Precedent To The Imposition Of The Tax And Conditions Or Restrictions On The Use 
Of The Tax Revenue; To Establish The Priority In Which The Net Proceeds Of The Tax Are To Be Expended 
For The Purposes And Projects Stated; To Provide For The Conduct Of The Referendum By The Chester 
County Board Of Voter Registration And Elections; To Provide For The Payment Of The Tax; To Provide For 
The Issuance Of Bonds, In One Or More Series, Tax-Exempt Or Taxable, In An Amount Not To Exceed The 
Aggregate Of $17,250,000; Authorizing The County Supervisor To Prescribe The Form And Details Of The 
Bonds; Providing For The Payment Of The Bonds And Pledge Of Revenues Related To The Bonds; Providing 



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 15th, 2020                                                              3 
 

Otherwise For The Disposition Of The Proceeds Of The Bonds; Providing For Borrowing In Anticipation Of 
The Issuance Of The Bonds; Providing For The Disposition Of Property Related To The Bonds; And Other 
Related Matters. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Oliphant. Vote 6-0 to 
approve.  

                     b.   3rd Reading of Ordinance 2020-16 Chester County Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget to Establish 
Operating And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South 
Carolina For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2020; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester 
County For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2020; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And 
Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money In 
Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing 
Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester 
County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government. 
Councilman Jordan motioned to postpone 3rd reading to June 18th, 2020 in order to have another budget 
workshop meeting, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
c.  Resolution 2020-12 To Approve Chester County 2020-2021 Departmental Organizational Charts. 
Chairman Stuart motioned to postpone to June 18th, 2020, second by Councilman Oliphant. Vote 6-0 to 
approve.  
 
d.  2nd  Reading 2020-17 An Ordinance To Amend An Agreement For The Development Of A Joint Industrial 
And Business Park Of Chester And York Counties So As To Enlarge The Park To Include A Portion Of Those 
Certain Pieces, Parcels, Or Tracts Of Land, With All Improvements Thereon, Situate Lying Or Being In The 
County Of Chester, State Of South Carolina, Bearing Tax Map Number: 165-00-00-002 And Other Real 
Property. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to 
approve.  
 
f.  1st Reading of 2020-19 An Ordinance to Amend the Fort Lawn Fire Protection District Section 5 
 Administration of the Districts. Attorney Winters stated the ordinance reads Council appoints all the 
members, where the rules of procedure read Council appoints three and Fort Lawn appoints two. It was 
decided to leave the total of members at five, three appointed by County Council at four-year terms and 
two appointed by the Town of Fort Lawn at two-year terms. Attorney Winters stated she would present a 
revised ordinance at the next regular called meeting. Councilman Oliphant motioned to approve, second 
by Councilman Wilson. Vote 6-0 to approve.  
 
g. Proclamation for Juneteenth Day. 
Councilman Oliphant motioned to accept the proclamation for Juneteenth Day, second by Councilwoman 
Guy. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 

7.     Old Business  

 a. To Review and Consider A Proposal for the Gateway IPRB. - Interim Economic Developer Jeff Burgess 

 moved to the July 6th, 2020 agenda.  

               b. Memorandum of Understanding Chester Fire District- Attorney Winters 
 moved to the July 6th, 2020 agenda 

 c. Update on Amending the Enabling Act for First Responders Using Radio Systems. Attorney  
               Winters and E911 Director Doug McMurray. 
  911 Director McMurray stated this would be an advisory committee to Council, any recommendations   
               would be presented to Council. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve by title only, second by  



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 15th, 2020                                                              4 
 

               Councilman Jordan. Vote 6-0 to approve. Attorney Winters stated she would have an ordinance ready  
               for the next meeting.  
 
 d. Update Pertaining to Opioid Litigation-Attorney Winters 
 Council asked Attorney Winters to provide what counites in South Carolina was not on the list and what the   
               liability. Attorney Winters stated she would get the information requested.  
 

 e. Discuss Policy Instructions of how 911 dispatches out call’s to Animal Care & Enforcement. -Councilman  
               Wilson. 
 Jenna Laws, Supervisor of Animal Care and Enforcement stated she was made aware it was the  
               Highway Patrol’s responsibility to handle calls regarding livestock being out, which would help with less  
               overtime for the department.  
 
8.      New Business 

              a. Budget Request for Small Business Development Retention and Expansion Program. Chairman Stuart 
 moved to the July 6th, 2020 agenda 
 
 b. Special Request from the City of Chester regarding July 4th. Chairman Stuart 
 Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve partially funding $3400 dollars for the fireworks and to contact  

other municipalities and townships and to also ensure proper protocol is followed, second by Councilman  
              Oliphant. Vote 6-0 to approve.   
 
9.      Boards and Commissions 

 a. Resignations of Fort Lawn Fire Protection District Commission. Chairman Stuart 
 Councilman Jordan stated for the record he had recused himself regarding legal issues involving the fire  

department and the board at previous meetings, he wanted to be sure he did not have to recuse himself 
regard of accepting the resignations. Attorney Winters stated no he would not, Chairman Stuart motioned  
to accept the resignations by consent agenda of Gwen Lazenby, Ellen   McFadden and James Lipscomb,  
Tracey Roddey and Rick Brown second by Councilman Oliphant. Vote 6-0 to accept the resignations.  

 

 b. Appointments to the Fort Lawn Fire Protection District Commission. 
 After much discussion it was decided to put this on the next agenda so Council could sort out issues  
              before appointing new members.  Councilman Oliphant stated now there is no board and the fire chief has  

no one to answer to until appointments are completed someone needs to be in charge and suggested the  
fire chief answer to the fire coordinator. Chairman Stuart agreed stating the fire coordinator Barkley  
Ramsey would be the point of contact to oversee the fire chief and other employees at that point of time.  

 

10.    Executive Session 
          Councilman Jordan motioned to go to Executive Session, second by Councilwoman Guy.  
          Vote 6-0 to approve. 

 
 a. Receive Legal Advice Regarding Former County Magistrate Judge. -Attorney Winters    

11.     Council Actions Following Executive Session 
           Councilman Wilson motioned to go back to Regular Session, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to  
           approve.  
 
 a.  Action Taken on Legal Advice Concerning Former County Magistrate Judge.  



 

Chester County Council Meeting June 15th, 2020                                                              5 
 

Vice Chairman Branham motioned due to the missteps done in the appointments with some of the 
magistrates there, Mrs. Barbara Cameron was looking for Cobra pay, two weeks in back pay and to 
reinstate the lapse in her time to make it continual to her original employment date, the money value was 
$ 4874.17, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 6-0 to approve.  

 

12.     Council Comments- None 

13.     Adjourn-Councilman Oliphant motioned to adjourn second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 6-0 to adjourn.     

Time 9:10 PM 

        

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the 
Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the 
bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

    



 

 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING MINUTES 

             R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Building 
                            1476 J A Cochran Bypass- Council Chambers 
                            Thursday, June 25th, 2020 at 3:00 PM  

 
                                         Special Called Meeting  

                  Minutes  

 

Present: Chairman Shane Stuart, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, Councilwoman 
Mary Guy, Council Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Councilman Alex 
Oliphant entered at 3:05 pm.  

Absent: Councilman Mike Vaughn and Councilman Pete Wilson were absent with prior notification.  

 

1.    Call to Order-Chairman Stuart called the meeting to order  

2.    Ordinance 

a. 1st Reading by Title Only Authorizing The Execution And Delivery Of A Fee In Lieu Of Ad Valorem 

Taxes Agreement By And Between Chester County And Project 2026; The Inclusion Of The Project 

Site (Located In Chester County) In A Multi-County Industrial Park; The Execution And Delivery Of 

Other Documents As May Be Necessary To Effect This Ordinance’s Intent; And Other Related 

Matters. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 4-0 to 

approve.  

 

3.  Old Business 

 

      a. Update Pertaining to Opioid Litigation-Attorney Winters 
      Councilwoman Guy motioned to participate in the opioid litigation, second by Councilman Oliphant. 
      Vote 4-0 to approve.  
 

 4.  Adjourn 
 

 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting 

 
 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-17 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK OF 
CHESTER AND YORK COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE A PORTION OF THOSE CERTAIN PIECES, PARCELS, 
OR TRACTS OF LAND, WITH ALL IMPROVEMENTS THEREON, 
SITUATE LYING OR BEING IN THE COUNTY OF CHESTER, STATE 
OF SOUTH CAROLINA, BEARING TAX MAP NUMBER: 165-00-00-002 
AND OTHER REAL PROPERTY. 

WHEREAS, Chester County (“County”) entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint 
Industrial and Business Park (Chester and York Counties) dated as of December 31, 2012, as amended, with 
York County (“Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein (“Park”) may be 
enlarged pursuant to an ordinance of the County Council with notice of the same to York County; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by the County to Project Sparrow 
(1864), the County desires to enlarge the boundaries of the Park to include certain parcel(s) in the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by County Council that Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby 
and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in the County described in Exhibit A 
attached to this Ordinance, and, at notice of the enlargement to York County, the Agreement is amended to 
so include the property on Exhibit A, without further action. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

        
Chairman, County Council/County Supervisor 
Chester County, South Carolina 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

        
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

First Reading:  June 1, 2020 
Second Reading: June 15, 2020 
Public Hearing:  July 6, 2020 
Third Reading:  July 6, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

         ORDINANCE NO. 2020-17 

 
 

Exhibit A 

ADDITION TO EXHIBIT A TO 
AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A JOINT INDUSTRIAL AND 
BUSINESS PARK DATED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012, AS AMENDED, 

                                                          BETWEEN CHESTER COUNTY AND YORK COUNTY 
 
 
 
 

ALL that parcel or tract of land, with all improvements thereon, lying and being situate in Chester 
County, SC, fronting on US Highway 21, about 0.8 miles north of the Town of Fort Lawn, containing 
37.31 acres, more or less being shown as Tracts 1-A and 1-B on plat by Fred J. Hager dated October 7, 
1974, recorded in Book 474, Page 152-153. Also see deed recorded in Book 474, Page 154. Map# 165-
00-00-002. Being part of the property conveyed to Aileen C. Shepherd by deed of distribution recorded in 
Book 807, Page 216. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         



 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2020-19 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHESTER COUNTY CODE CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, 
SECTION  761et seq., FORT LAWN FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND LEWIS FIRE 

PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, following a review of Chapter 2, Section 761 et seq., it is found that 
the precepts of the Ordinance are not in concert with the practice of appointment to 
the Fire Protection District Board; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ordinance currently reads under Section 2-765(a): 

 
Each District shall be administered by a board of commissioners (“board”) 
consisting of no fewer than three commissions (sic) and no more than seven 
commissioners.  County council shall appoint the board for each district and 
establish the term for the commissioners of each board in accordance with the 
policies, procedures and standard practices of county council relating to 
commission and board appointments.    

 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, in practice, the County has delegated two (2) of its appointments to 
the Town of Fort Lawn, retaining the remaining five (5) appointments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the desire of the County is to set the terms for the appointments by 
the Town of Fort Lawn to two (2) years and to set the terms for the appointments by 
Chester County to four (4) years, instead of in accordance with the policies, procedures 
and standard practices of county council relating to commission and board 
appointments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chester County Code must be amended to both mirror practice 
and the desire of the Chester County Council. 
 



        Ordinance No. 2020-19 
  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE 
AMENDMENTS ARE HEREBY ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Code Section 2-765 will be amended to read: 
 
 Each district shall be administered by a board of commissioners (“board”) 
consisting of no fewer than three commissioners and no more than seven 
commissioners.  County council shall appoint five of the commissioners for each district 
for a term of four (4) years, in accordance with the policies, procedures and standard 
practices of county council relating to commission and board appointments.  The Town 
of Fort Lawn shall appoint two of the commissioners for each district for a term of two 
(2) years, in accordance with the policies, procedures and standard practices of county 
council relating to commission and board appointments.   
 
 These Ordinance amendments shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester 

County Council on the date of the final reading approval. 

 

Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2020. 

 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 
 
By:_________________________________ 
K. Shane Stuart, Chester County Supervisor 
 
Attest: 
 
By:________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 
 
First Reading:  June 15th, 2020 
Second Reading: July 6th,2020 
Public Hearing: July 20th, 2020 
Third Reading:             July 20th, 2020 
Chester County, South Carolina 



                  Res. 2020-15 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )  A RESOLUTION OF 

)  CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
CHESTER COUNTY     ) 

PROVIDING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL FOR CERTAIN 
INCENTIVES TO INDUCE A COMPANY IDENTIFIED AS PROJECT 
2026, ACTING FOR ITSELF, ONE OR MORE CURRENT OR FUTURE 
AFFILIATES AND OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS (COLLECTIVELY, 
“COMPANY”) TO ESTABLISH CERTAIN FACILITIES IN CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (“COUNTY”), INCLUDING (1) 
NEGOTIATED FEE IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAX 
ARRANGEMENTS; (2) MULTI-COUNTY INDUSTRIAL OR BUSINESS 
PARK ARRANGEMENTS; AND (3) OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, Chester County, South Carolina (“County”), acting by and through its County Council 
(“County Council”), is authorized and empowered, under and pursuant to the provisions of the Code of 
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended through the date hereof (“Code”), particularly Title 12, Chapter 
44 thereof (“Negotiated FILOT Act”) and Title 4, Chapter 1 of the Code (“Multi-County Park Act” or, as 
to Section 4-1-175 thereof, and, by incorporation, Section 4-29-68 of the Code, “Special Source Act,” 
collectively with Negotiated FILOT Act, “Act”), and by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina 
Constitution: (i) to enter into agreements with certain investors to establish projects through which the 
economic development of the State of South Carolina (“State”) will be promoted and trade developed, thus 
utilizing and employing the manpower, agricultural products, and natural resources of the State; (ii) to 
covenant with such investors to accept certain fee in lieu of ad valorem tax (“FILOT”) payments including, 
but not limited to, negotiated FILOT (“Negotiated FILOT”) payments, with respect to a project; and (iii) to 
create, in conjunction with one or more other counties, a multi-county industrial or business park to allow 
certain enhanced income tax credits to such investors; 

WHEREAS, a company identified for the time being as Project 2026, acting for itself, one or more 
current or future affiliates and other project sponsors (collectively, “Company”) proposes to invest in, or 
cause others to invest in, the establishment of a cryogenic tank manufacturing and refurbishing operation 
in the County (“Project”), which the Company expects will result in the creation of approximately 30 new, 
full-time equivalent jobs and investment of approximately $9,500,000 in taxable property; and 

WHEREAS, on the basis of the information supplied to it by the Company, the County has determined 
the Project would subserve the purposes of the Act and would be directly and substantially beneficial to the 
County, the taxing entities of the County and the citizens and residents of the County due to the employment 
and investment associated therewith, which contribute to the tax base and the economic welfare of the 
County, and, accordingly, the County wishes to induce the Company to undertake the Project by offering 
the FILOT and other incentives hereinafter described, subject, however, to final approval by ordinance of 
the County Council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council, as follows: 

Section 1. As contemplated by Section 12-44-40(I) of the Code, based solely on information provided 
to the County by the Company, the County makes the following findings and determinations: (a) the Project 
will constitute a “project” within the meaning of the Negotiated FILOT Act; (b) the Project, and the 
County’s actions herein, will subserve the purposes of the Negotiated FILOT Act; (c) the Project is  

anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the State and the County by providing services, 
employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; (d) the Project gives  



2 

                    Res. 2020-15 

 

rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or incorporated municipality or a charge against its general 
credit or taxing power; (e) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and 
public purposes; (f) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs; and (g) the Project will have a 
substantial public benefit. 

Section 2. Subject to the provisions of the Act and to final approval by the Council through adoption 
of an ordinance (“Approving Ordinance”), the County Council Chair/County Supervisor and other officials 
of the County as may be designated by the Approving Ordinance are authorized, by and on behalf of the 
County, to enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement with the Company containing the terms and conditions 
summarized in the proposed term sheet appended hereto as Attachment A, which is incorporated in this 
Resolution by reference as if fully set forth in this Resolution, and other terms and conditions as may be 
authorized by the Approving Ordinance. Capitalized terms utilized in Attachment A and not otherwise 
defined in therein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Resolution. 

Section 3. All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of that 
conflict hereby repealed. This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force upon adoption by the Council. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

  



3 

 
                    Res. 2020-15 
 
 
 
Adopted: July 6, 2020 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

             
Chairman/Supervisor 
Chester County Council 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

             
Clerk to Council 

 



               Res. 2020-15 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
PRELIMINARY TERM SHEET* 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND A COMPANY IDENTIFIED FOR THE TIME 
BEING AS PROJECT 2026 AND ONE OR MORE AFFILIATES OR OTHER PROJECT SPONSORS 

Company Commitments: $9,500,000 aggregate, taxable investment; 30 aggregate, new, full-time 
equivalent jobs 

Basic FILOT Terms: 6% assessment ratio; fixed millage rate of 489.3; 5-year investment period; 
20-year payment period for each annual increment of investment during 
investment period; real property not subject to reassessment 

Multi-County Park: In the County’s discretion, all property of Company in County to be 
designated as part of a multi-county industrial or business park 

*Terms set forth in this Attachment are summary in nature and shall be set forth in greater detail, including 
any clawbacks, in the final fee in lieu of tax agreement. 

































































1 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2020-22 
    )   
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
  

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY OF CHESTER, BY CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL, TO 

SELL THE REAL ESTATE DESCRIBED ON ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A” WHICH IS INCORPORATED 
HEREIN BY REFERENCE TO MR. F.G. DELLENEY, JR. UPON SUCH TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS 

DESCRIBED IN THE REQUEST FOR BID  
 
 

 WHEREAS, under the Ordinances of Chester County, it is necessary for Chester County 
Council to pass an Ordinance and have a public hearing whenever it sells county property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County owns property being and situate on Ridgeview Road, being a 
certain parcel or tract of land known as 21 +/-  acres also known as Tax Map No. 050-00-00-057; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council had determined that it is in the best interest of the 
County and the citizens of Chester County to entertain sealed bids for the sale of said property 
and issued the request via advertisement on October 2, 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 24, 2019, the singular bid received which was from F.G. Delleney 
was accepted and opened, and was accepted by Chester County Council on November 4, 2019 
at a duly called meeting and by unanimous vote; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council must approve the sale via the legislative process of 
adopting an ordinance.   
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS HEREBY 
ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby authorize the sale of the real estate described on 
attached Exhibit “A” and upon such terms and conditions as described under the advertised 
request for bid.  
 



        Ordinance No. 2020-22 
 
 
This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council on the 

date of the final reading approval. 
 
Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2020. 
 
DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this ____ day of ____________ 2020. 
 
 
 
 
     COUNTY COUNCIL OF CHESTER COUNTY 
 
     __________________________________________ 
     K. Shane Stuart, Supervisor  
     Chairman, County Council of Chester County 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen Lee 
Clerk to County Council of Chester County 
 
First Reading:  July 6th, 2020 
Second Reading: ________ ___, 2020  
Public Hearing: ________ ___, 2020 
Third Reading:  ________ ___, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

Chester County Chamber of Commerce 
109 Gadsden Street, Chester, South Carolina 29706 

T: 803-581-4142   

Memo 

To: County Supervisor Shane Stuart 

From: Brooke Clinton 

CC: Wesley Carter, Jr.  

RE:  Budget request for Small Business Development Retention and Expansion Program 

The Chester County Chamber of Commerce exists to promote business development in Chester 

County.  Last year, we launched the Stay Local My Friends campaign to encourage those who live and 

work in the county to shop local and use local services.  We believe small business development is vital 

to developing a strong economy and a stable community that keeps residents satisfied and happy living 

in Chester County.  The chamber is funded through membership dues and donations.  A contract 

service with the county would allow the chamber to expand current small business development 

programs and create new ones, especially ideas outlined in the 2019 strategic plan: 

• A 20 hour per week part-time staff position for Small Business Retention and Expansion  

o 50 BRE visits yearly 

o Assist new businesses in making connections and directing them to resources (i.e. 

permits, business licenses, attorneys, loans, SBDC, etc.) 

• Target marketing of our county’s small business community (increase in social media postings, 

videos, etc.) 

• Website designs for members; templates for non-members 

• Resource pages on chamber site (linked to economic development page) 

• Chamber office in Great Falls (2 Fridays a month, War Memorial Building) 

REQUEST (includes salary, technology, travel, programming, training): $38,271.00 

 

 

 



Proposal for the Gateway IPRB 
 

The Gateway Conference Center Expansion came in under budget $27,498.97.   

 

Below are items that were not included in the scope of the Gateway Expansion project that we would like 

to add. 

 

FENCING ALONG NORTHERN PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

It was brought to our attention of a need for a fence along the northern portion of the property.  At the 

end of the parking lot there is a steep dropoff leading to a retention pond.  The installation of a fence 

would be mainly as a safety precaution.  

We were able to find a contractor that will install a 618-foot commercial black chain fence for $9,944.50.   

By way of comparison Southside Constructors quote for installation of the fencing was $20,439.31  

 

WATER HEATER 

Add a 50 Gallon Commercial water heater to the Gateway to supplement the current Gateway Conference 

commercial water heater. Given the heightened awareness and the need for cleanliness due to the 

pandemic, the additional water heater will ensure hot water is readily available to all the rest rooms and 

new kitchen area.    

We were able to find a contractor for a standard commercial water heater installation: $8,520.00  

By way of comparison Southside Constructors costs to install:   $8,950.19 

 

HVAC  

Replace original/existing HVAC unit located in the Gateway Conference center with a new Trane unit.  

The current unit has been in operation when the facility was Norse AutoMall.  The unit is prone to 

shutting down and at this time is unable to adequate cool or heat and appears to be nearing the end of 

its service life.   

Price for the new unit HVAC $8,791.74 

 

“Add ons” total:  $27,256.24 

 
















































































































































	2.  6-11-2020 Special Called and Budgetworkshop Minutes
	3. 6-15-2020 Minutes
	4. 6-25-2020 Special Called Council Minutes
	5. 2020-17  Chester MCIP Ordinance (Sparrow) 5-26-2020
	6.  2020-19  Ordinance to Amend Chapter 2-761
	7. 2020-15  Project 2026 Inducement Resolution (Chester) (ver1 2020.06.30)
	8. 2020-20 Ordinance and Fee Agreement Project 2026
	9. Ord. 2020-21 Ordinance to Create CC Radio Users Advisory Committee
	10. 2020-22 Ordinance to SellRealEstateRidgeviewRd2
	11. Fort Lawn Revitalization
	12.  Budget Request fro Small Business Development Retention and Expansion Program
	13. Proposal for Gateway IPRB
	14.  Appointing Procedures for Boards and Commissions
	15. CCMA20-02 Patton Development SC
	16.  CCMA20-06 Gary Howell
	17.  CCMA20-3 Luck Stone
	18. CCMA20-5 Luck Stone
	19. CCMA20-4 Luck Stone
	20.  Richburg Fire EMS update
	21. Rodman Ball Park Master Plan Old and New Plan
	22. parks and recreation advisory board application
	23. Applications for Fort Lawn Fire Protection District (2)



